
 
 

November 21, 2024                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               6:28 PM 

A G E N D A  •  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 21, 2024 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
Planning Commission Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or 
General Services Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council 
Chamber. 
 
The Clovis Planning Commission meetings are open to the public at the physical address listed 
above. There are numerous ways to participate in the Planning Commission meetings: you are able 
to attend in person; you may submit written comments as described below; and you may view the 
meeting which is webcast and accessed at www.cityofclovis.com/agendas. 
 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas at least two (2) hours before the meeting (4:00 p.m.).  You 
will be prompted to provide:  

 

 Planning Commission Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment  

 

 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 
 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the Planning Commission noting the 
item number.  If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below. 

 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 
item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 
 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 

made to provide the comment to the Planning Commission during the meeting.  However, 
staff cannot guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to 
Planning Commission during the meeting.  All written comments received prior to the end 
of the meeting will be made part of the record of proceedings. 

  

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


November 21, 2024                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               6:28 PM 

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION PROHIBITIONS AND MANDATORY DISCLOSURE - Pursuant to 

Government Code section 84308, a Councilmember shall not accept, solicit, or direct a campaign 

contribution of more than $250 from any party or their agent, or from any participant or their agent, 

while a proceeding involving a license, permit, contract, or other entitlement for use is pending before 

the City or for 12 months after a final decision is rendered in that proceeding. Any Councilmember 

who has received a campaign contribution of more than $250 within the preceding 12 months from 

a party or their agent, or from a participant or their agent, must disclose that fact on the record of the 

proceeding and shall not make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use their official 

position to influence the decision.  

Pursuant to Government Code section 84308(e), any party to a covered proceeding before the City 

Council is required to disclose on the record of the proceeding any campaign contribution, including 

aggregated contributions, of more than $250 made within the preceding 12 months by the party or 

their agent to any Councilmember. The disclosure shall be made as required by Government Code 

Section 84308(e)(1) and 2 CCR Section 18438.8. No party or their agent, and no participant or their 

agent, shall make a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any Councilmember during the 

covered proceeding or for 12 months after a final decision is made in that proceeding. The foregoing 

statements do not constitute legal advice, and parties and participants are urged to consult with their 

own legal counsel regarding the applicable requirements of the law.   

CALL TO ORDER 

FLAG SALUTE 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Planning Commission Minutes for the Meeting of October 24, 2024. 

COMMISSION SECRETARY COMMENTS 

2. Planning Commission Meeting Dates for 2025. 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Planning 
Commission on any matter within the Planning Commission’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the 
Agenda.  In order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 3 minutes or less, or 10 
minutes per topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact 
the Planning Division and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of 
appearance. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting 
of the Planning Commission, for which special notice has been given and may be required. When a 



November 21, 2024                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               6:28 PM 

public hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 
54955.1. 

3. Consider Approval, Res. 24-___, CUP2024-009, Adopting a Class 1 Categorical Exemption 
from further environmental review under CEQA and a request to approve a conditional use 
permit to allow development of a showroom expansion for the existing Honda North 
automotive sales facility located at 750 W. Herndon Avenue. Goree Whitfield, applicant; Palm 
and Herndon LLC, owner. 

 
Staff: Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

4. Consider Approval, Res. 24-___, CUP2024-011, Adopting a Class 1 Categorical Exemption 
from further environmental review under CEQA and a request to approve a conditional use 
permit to allow the development of a restaurant with wine sales located at 335 Woodworth 
Avenue. Marlette Associates Architecture, applicant; Seth Hunt, owner. 

 
Staff: Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

5. Consider Approval, Res. 24-___, R2024-007, Adopting an exemption from further 
environmental review under CEQA Guidelines Section 15183 and approving P-C-C 
Amendment R2024-007, amending the use schedule and preliminary development plan for 
the Loma Vista Marketplace Planned Commercial Center.   

 
Staff: Marissa Jensen, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

6. Consider items associated with ±37.92 acres of land located at the southeast corner of the N. 
Peach Avenue alignment and Behymer Avenue. DeYoung Properties and Gary Yamamoto, 
owners; DeYoung Properties, applicant; Juli Kutka, representative.  

  

a) Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, A resolution recommending that the City Council adopt an 
environmental finding of a Mitigated Negative Declaration and a Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program for Reorganization 311, Prezone 2024-006, Vesting Tentative Tract Map 
6482, and Planned Development Permit 2024-002. 

 
b) Consider Approval, Res. 24-___, R2024-006, A resolution recommending that the City 

Council approve a request to prezone the properties within the annexation area from the 
Fresno County AE-20 Zone District to the Clovis R-1-PRD and R-1 Zone Districts. 
 

c) Consider Approval, Res. 24-___, TM6482, A resolution recommending that the City Council 
approve a vesting tentative tract map for a 266-lot single-family planned residential 
development.  
 

d) Consider Approval, Res. 24-___, PDP2024-002, A resolution recommending that the City 
Council approve a planned development permit for a 266-lot single-family residential 



November 21, 2024                                                                           - 4 -                                                                               6:28 PM 

development.   
 

Staff: Marissa Jensen, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  

 

7. Consider items associated with ±14.57 acres of land located on the south side of E. Perrin 
Avenue, between N. Minnewawa Avenue and west of the N. Clovis Avenue alignment. David 
Williams, John & Tricia Zimmerer, Merrill Michael, Misha Kay Wight Miller, and Jon Kurisu 
owners; Bonadelle Homes, applicant; Scott Harbour, representative. 
 
Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, A resolution recommending that the City Council adopt an 
environmental finding of a Mitigated Negative Declaration and a Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program for Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6467 and Planned Development 
Permit 2024-003. 
 
Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, TM6467, A resolution recommending that the City Council 
approve a vesting tentative tract map for a 162-lot single-family planned residential 
development, subject to the City Council’s approval of the annexation.  
 
Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, PDP2024-003, A resolution recommending that the City 
Council approve a planned development permit for a 162-lot single-family residential 
development.   
 
Staff: Marissa Jensen, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

8. Consider items associated with approximately 58.9 acres on the east side of N. Minnewawa 
Avenue, between East Perrin and Shepherd Avenues. Multiple, owners; Lennar Homes, 
applicant; Yamabe & Horn Engineering Inc., representative. 

 
Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, A resolution recommending that the City Council adopt an 
environmental finding of a mitigated negative declaration and a mitigation monitoring and 
reporting program for Reorganization (RO) 310, Prezone (R) 2024-005, Vesting Tentative 
Tract Map (TM) 6375, and Planned Development Permit (PDP) 2024-001. 
 
Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, R2024-005, A resolution recommending that the Clovis City 
Council approve a request to prezone property within the annexation area from the Fresno 
County AE20 Zone District to the Clovis C-1, R-1-PRD, O, and P-C-C Zone Districts. 
 
Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, TM6375, A resolution recommending that the City Council 
approve a vesting tentative tract map for a 385-lot single-family planned residential 
development on approximately 58.9 acres of land subject to the City Council’s approval of the 
annexation. 
 
Consider Approval, Res. 24-__, PDP2024-001, A resolution recommending that the City 
Council approve a planned development permit for a 385-lot single-family residential 
development. 
 



November 21, 2024                                                                           - 5 -                                                                               6:28 PM 

Staff: Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS - Administrative Items are matters on the regular Planning Commission 
Agenda other than Public Hearings. 

ADJOURNMENT 

MEETINGS & KEY ISSUES 

Regular Planning Commission Meetings are held at 6 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following 
are future meeting dates: 

December 19 



CLOVIS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
October 24, 2024 

 
 
A meeting of the Clovis Planning Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair Antuna in the 
Clovis Council Chamber.  
  
Flag salute led by Commissioner Hinkle 
 
Present: Commissioners Bedsted, Hatcher, Hebert, Hinkle, Chair Antuna 
   
Absent:  None 
 
Staff:  Renee Mathis, PDS Director 
  Dave Merchen, City Planner 
  George Gonzalez, Senior Planner 
  Lily Cha-Haydostian, Senior Planner 
  Liz Salazar, Assistant Planner 
  Marissa Jensen, Assistant Planner 
  Joyce Roach, Planning Technician II 
  Sean Smith, Supervising Civil Engineer 
  Christopher Kelly, Civil Engineer 
  Ruben Amavizca, Engineer II 
  Sarai Yanovsky, Civil Engineer 
  Aaron La Mattina, Staff Analyst 
  Chad McCollum, Econ. Dev. Housing & Comm. Director 
  Matt Lear, City Attorney 
      
MINUTES – 6:01 
ITEM 1 – APPROVED.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Hebert, to approve the October 3, 2024, 
minutes. Motion carried 4-0-1 with Chair Antuna abstaining. 
 
COMMISSION SECRETARY – 6:02 
City Planner Dave Merchen informed that the Planning Division has implemented an acting/interim 
deputy city planner program. 
 
Interim Deputy City Planner George Gonzalez informed that the Commission had received modified 
conditions of approval for Item #5. 
 
Interim Deputy City Planner George Gonzalez inquired as to whether the Commission would consider 
beginning the November 21, 2024, meeting earlier than 6:00 p.m. City Planner Dave Merchen brought 
up the possibility of alternative dates as well, due the number of items set to go in November and 
December. Commissioner Hatcher and Chair Antuna provided input. 
 
Interim Deputy City Planner George Gonzalez informed that City Planner Dave Merchen will be retiring 
mid-December. 
 
 
 



 
  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS COMMENTS – 6:04 
Chair Antuna expressed approval of the interim deputy city planner program. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:04 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ITEM 1 - 6:05 – APPROVED – RES. 24-28, CUP2024-006, ADOPTING A CLASS 32 CATEGORICAL 

EXEMPTION FROM FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW UNDER CEQA AND A REQUEST TO 

APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO AMEND THE MOUNTAIN VIEW SHOPPING CENTER 

PLANNED COMMERCIAL CENTER USE SCHEDULE TO ALLOW OFFICE USES AT 1860-1880 SHAW 

AVENUE. CRISTEN MARTIN, APPLICANT; THOMAS RICHARDS, OWNER. 

 
Motion by Commissioner Bedsted, seconded by Commissioner Hatcher, for the Planning Commission to 
approve Resolution 24-28, a resolution adopting a Class 32 Categorical Exemption from further 
environmental review under CEQA, and approving a conditional use permit to amend the Mountain View 
Shopping Center Planned Commercial Center Use Schedule to allow office uses at 1860 – 1880 Shaw 
Avenue. Motion carried by unanimous consent. 
 
ITEM 2 - 6:12 – APPROVED – RES. 24-29, CUP2024-010, ADOPTING A CLASS 32 CATEGORICAL 

EXEMPTION FROM FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW UNDER CEQA AND TO APPROVE A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE OPERATION OF AN ADULT DAYCARE CENTER 

WITHIN AN EXISTING BUILDING AT 100 W. ASHLAN AVENUE. JAMI DE LA CERDA, APPLICANT 

AND OWNER. 

 
Motion by Commissioner Bedsted, seconded by Commissioner Hatcher, for the Planning Commission to 
approve Resolution 24-29, a resolution adopting a Class 32 Categorical Exemption from further 
environmental review under CEQA, and approving a conditional use permit allowing the operation of an 
adult daycare center within an existing building at 100 W. Ashlan Avenue. Motion carried by unanimous 
consent. 
 
ITEM 3 - 6:30 – APPROVED – RES. 24-30, CUP2024-007, ADOPTING A CLASS 1 CATEGORICAL 

EXEMPTION FROM FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW UNDER CEQA AND TO APPROVE A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW OPERATION OF A TATTOO PARLOR (BODY ART 

ESTABLISHMENT) WITHIN AN EXISTING COMMERCIAL CENTER AT 711 W. SHAW AVENUE, 

SUITE 111. LOTUS BODY ART, APPLICANT; WESTERN VILLAGE INC., OWNER. 

 
Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Bedsted, for the Planning Commission to 
approve Resolution 24-30, a resolution adopting a Class 1 Categorical Exemption from further 
environmental review under CEQA, and approving a conditional use allowing operation of a tattoo parlor 
(body art establishment) within an existing commercial center at 711 Shaw Avenue, Suite 111. Motion 
carried by unanimous consent. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  
 

ITEM 4A – 6:35 – APPROVED – RES. 24-31, A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL 

DENY AN ENVIRONMENTAL FINDING OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND A 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 

6452 AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 2023-001; ITEM 4B – APPROVED – RES. 24-32, 

TM6452, A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL DENY A VESTING TENTATIVE 

TRACT MAP FOR A 153-LOT SINGLE-FAMILY PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT ON 

APPROXIMATELY 18 ACRES OF LAND; ITEM 4C – APPROVED – RES. 24.33, PDP2023-001, A 

RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL DENY A REQUEST TO APPROVE A 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FOR A 153-LOT SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT. 

Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Bedsted, for the Planning Commission to 

approve Resolution 24-31, a resolution approving a recommendation that the City Council deny an 

environmental finding of a Mitigated Negative Declaration and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 

Program for Vesting Tentative Tract Map 6452 and Planned Development Permit 2023-01. Motion carried 

by unanimous consent. 

Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Bedsted, for the Planning Commission to 

approve Resolution 24-32, a resolution approving a recommendation that the City Council deny a 

vesting tentative tract map for a 153-lot single-family planned residential development on approximately 

18 acres of land. Motion carried by unanimous consent. 

Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Bedsted, for the Planning Commission to 

approve Resolution 24-33, a resolution approving a recommendation that the City Council deny a 

request to approve a planned development permit for a 153-lot single-family residential development. 

Motion carried by unanimous consent. 

ITEM 5A – 7:19 – APPROVED – RES. 24-34, A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL 

ADOPT AN ENVIRONMENTAL FINDING OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND A 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR P-C-C AMENDMENT R2024-004; 

ITEM 5B – APPROVED – RES. 24-35, R2024-004, A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE CITY 

COUNCIL APPROVE P-C-C AMENDMENT R2024-004, AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT 

STANDARD AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE TUSCAN VILLAGE PLANNED 

COMMERCIAL CENTER. 

Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Hebert, for the Planning Commission to 

approve Resolution 24-34, a resolution approving a recommendation that the City Council adopt an 

environmental finding of a Mitigated Negative Declaration and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 

Program for P-C-C Amendment R2024-004. Motion carried by unanimous consent. 

Motion by Commissioner Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Hebert, for the Planning Commission to 

approve Resolution 24-35, a resolution approving a recommendation that the City Council approve P-

C-C Amendment R2024-004, amending the development standard and preliminary development plan for 

the Tuscan Village Planned Commercial Center. Motion carried by unanimous consent. 

ADJOURNMENT AT 7:52 P.M. UNTIL the Planning Commission meeting on November 21, 2024. 
 
    
Alma Antuna, Chairperson 



 

City Manager 559.324.2060 • Community Services 559.324.2095 • Engineering 559.324.2350  

Finance 559.324.2130 • Fire 559.324.2200 • General Services 559.324.2060 • Personnel/Risk Management 559.324.2725  

Planning & Development Services 559.324.2340 • Police 559.324.2400 • Public Utilities 559.324.2600 • TTY-711 

www.cityofclovis.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To: City Staff and Planning Commissioners 
 
From: Dave Merchen, City Planner 
 
Date: November 21, 2024 
 
Subject: 2025 Planning Commission Dates 

 

 
The 2025 Planning Commission meeting dates are as follows: 
 

 January 23, 2025 

 February 27, 2025 

 March 27, 2025 

 April 24, 2025 (Alternate date to avoid Clovis Rodeo April 23-27) 

 May 22, 2025 

 June 26, 2025 

 July 24, 2025 

 August 28, 2025 

 September 25, 2025 

 October 23, 2025 

 November 20, 2025 (Alternate date to avoid Thanksgiving Day - November 27) 

 December 18, 2025 (Alternate date to avoid Christmas travel conflicts) 

 
If you have any questions or concerns please reach out to me at (559) 324-2346 or 
davidm@cityofclovis.com. 
 
 




